







6 January 2020

Joint preliminary comprehensive proposal on the cost recovery policy

Summary

In UNDP/UNFPA/UNOPS Executive Board decision 2018/21, UNICEF Executive Board decision 2018/21 and UN-Women Executive Board decision 2018/6, the Executive Boards directed the agencies to: (a) present a preliminary comprehensive proposal on the cost-recovery policy for consideration by the Executive Board at its first regular session in 2020, with a view to present a final comprehensive proposal for decision of the Executive Board at its second regular session in 2020; (b) review in a comprehensive manner cost-recovery rates, as part of the comprehensive proposal; and (c) present an assessment of the reasons why full cost recovery is not currently being achieved, as part of the comprehensive proposal. The present joint report is in direct response to the above requests.

In UNDP/UNFPA/UNOPS Executive Board decision 2019/21, UNICEF Executive Board decision 2019/28 and UN-Women Executive Board decision 2019/12, the Executive Boards requested additional information on recommendation 3 (regarding the independent oversight and assurance functions). The present joint report responds to the request on recommendation 3 and describes the overall importance of cost recovery while providing additional analysis and an impact assessment of the following: (a) stronger argumentation of why cost recovery is relevant; (b) impact of the differentiated rates; and (c) rationale for the separate budget lines for independent oversight and assurance activities.

Elements of a decision for consideration by the Boards are contained in section X.

Contents

I.	Introduction	2
II.	Context	3
III.	Cost classification recommendation: independent oversight and assurance	3
IV.	Cost recovery: strategic issues	4
V.	Cost recovery: basis and principles	5
VI.	Cost recovery: proposed approach	7
VII.	Cost recovery: rates	8
VIII.	Cost recovery: advantages and challenges	11
IX.	The case for continued harmonization	11
X.	Elements of a decision	13
Annex	es	15
A.	Historical context of cost recovery	15
B.	Details of the cost classification categories at the granular level	17
C.	Mock-Up of Recommendation 3	23
D.	Cost recovery: basis and principles.	26
E.	Detailed calculations of the notional cost-recovery rates	28
F	Glossary	20

I. Introduction

- 1. This report responds to the requests of the three Executive Boards of UNDP, UNFPA, UNICEF and UN-Women ("the agencies") on ensuring that the cost recovery policy is transparent, easy to implement, understand and communicate, so that it may be applied elsewhere in the United Nations system. Informed by joint informal briefings with the Boards held on 1 November 2019 and 10 December 2019 the present report addresses the comments made by Member States during those engagements. In decisions 2018/21 (UNDP, UNFPA), 2018/21 (UNICEF) and 2018/6 (UN-Women), the Executive Boards directed the agencies to: (a) present a preliminary comprehensive proposal on the cost-recovery policy for consideration by the Executive Board at its first regular session in 2020, and to present a final comprehensive proposal for decision of the Executive Board at its second regular session in 2020; (b) review, in a comprehensive manner, cost-recovery rates, as part of the comprehensive proposal; and (c) present an assessment of the reasons why full cost recovery is not currently being achieved, as part of the comprehensive proposal.
- 2. In addition, the present report also responds to decisions 2019/21 (UNDP/UNFPA), 2019/28 (UNICEF) and 2019/12 (UN-Women), in which the Executive Boards requested additional information on recommendation 3 with respect to harmonization of cost classifications among the agencies (DP/FPA-ICEF-UNW/2019/1).
- 3. Reaffirming the current harmonized cost recovery policy, the Executive Boards had requested the four agencies to jointly review existing cost definitions and classifications of activities and associated costs to further harmonize their approaches by determining common definitions of cost categories and corresponding activities and functions at a granular level, while taking into account the different business models of the individual agencies. At their second regular sessions in 2019, the Boards endorsed the agencies' recommendations for further alignment on cost classification, beginning in 2022, and requested additional information on the recommendation to separate cost classification line items. Cost classification categories are

discussed in more detail below while the implications of the Executive Boards' decisions have been addressed throughout this report.

II. Context

- 4. A harmonized cost recovery policy is premised on a harmonized cost classification framework, and thus is not purely a budget exercise. Cost recovery is about ensuring that the agencies' budgets are fully financed so that they can fulfil their respective mandates as stated in their strategic plans. Stable funding is critical for the institutional backbone and normative work of the United Nations organizations, and is vital to deliver projects and results in line with country programmes and strategic plan outcomes. Basic costs need to be covered by all donors proportionally, and cost recovery is the integral framework which makes this possible, while further stimulating inter-agency collaboration, as envisioned by the Secretary-General's reform agenda, while transparently demonstrating that partnering with the United Nations offers considerable value for money.
- 5. The role of cost recovery is further guided by General Assembly resolution 71/243 on the quadrennial comprehensive policy review of operational activities for development of the United Nations system (QCPR), which emphasized two critical concepts that guide any cost recovery policy and form the basis for the current proposals. These concepts are: (a) regular resources form a bedrock of United Nations operational activities for development owing to their untied nature; and (b) regular resources should not subsidize other resources.
- 6. As a result of these factors, cost recovery policy, while rooted in technical finance and budgetary methodologies, has considerable implications for institutional transparency, politics, resource mobilization, and inter-agency cooperation. The cost recovery policy also indicates what is covered by direct costs, and what is covered by indirect costs.
- 7. Finally, it is important to acknowledge that under the cost recovery policy, core resources pay for programmes, development effectiveness, United Nations coordination and critical crosscutting and agency-specific functions. This transparency and unprecedented level of oversight is a direct result of the previous 10-year endeavour to develop the current cost recovery policy and the cost classification regime that is its foundation.

III. Cost classification recommendation: independent oversight and assurance

- 8. Recalling Executive Board decisions 2019/21 (UNDP/UNFPA), 2019/28 (UNICEF) and 2019/12 (UN-Women) endorsing further alignment relating to cost classification for application, effective 2022, and calling for additional information to be provided at the first regular session 2020, in an effort to further harmonize the existing cost classifications within the four agencies the agencies propose to create a separate cost classification for 'independent oversight and assurance activities' as part of the institutional budget. The proposed definition of this cost category is the following: 'activities and associated costs supporting the independent audit and investigations and corporate evaluation functions'.
- 9. The rationale for including 'independent oversight and assurance activities' as a separate cost classification is that in successive sessions, the Executive Boards have asked the agencies for increased transparency on the independent oversight and assurance functions in the budget.
- 10. By proposing a separate cost classification, the agencies are able to highlight the costs for 'the second line of defense' and the costs for 'the third line of defense'. This rationale promotes the independent nature of these functions, and enables the Executive Boards to more easily compare investments in the independent oversight functions by each agency, and directly compare costs relative to overall programme volume, thereby ensuring enhanced efficiency and effectiveness of these resources.
- 11. The suggestion had been made during the informal consultations with the Boards to consider splitting further the audit function, to include a separate budget line for investigation. This idea

has merit as it relates to transparency and may be considered in the context of the next integrated budgets for 2022-2025. However, as it does not affect the calculation of cost recovery, it is not discussed in the present report.

- 12. Following the informal consultations in November 2019, it was decided to not include 'United Nations coordination activities' as a separate budget line, as the de-linking of the resident coordinator function, as mandated by General Assembly resolution 72/279, should provide the United Nations system the necessary transparency for sustainable financing of this function. In this regard, discussion of critical cross-cutting functions while proposed to be retained as a part of the cost recovery policy may require further elaboration, in particular for UNDP where there has been a higher impact of the de-linking process, in the final policy framework for the second regular session of 2020.
- 13. A detailed overview of the cost classification categories, including the new 'independent oversight and assurance activities' budget lines is provided in annex 2. Further details on the figures for this cost classification as presented within the institutional budget are provided in annex 3 (mock up for recommendation 3).

IV. Cost recovery: strategic issues

- 14. *QCPR*. General Assembly resolution 71/243 on the QCPR emphasized two critical concepts that guide any cost-recovery policy and form the basis for both the current and alternate proposals. These concepts are: (a) regular resources form a bedrock of United Nations operational activities for development owing to their untied nature; and (b) regular resources should not subsidize other resources. The role of regular resources includes support to Member States in the establishment and implementation of United Nations norms or standards to implement the strategic plans. This differs from the mandate of a project implementation agency, particularly given the gradual relative escalation of contributions to other resources. Nonetheless, the harmonized policy remains guided by the QCPR.
- 15. Funding compact. The decision on further harmonization of the cost recovery policy among the four agencies should be seen within the context of the United Nations funding compact. Within the funding compact, the agencies are working to support a set of commitments provided by Member States to increase core, pooled and thematic funds, and commitments by the United Nations development system to improve transparency of spending, visibility requirements, joint activities, including pooled funding, system-wide evaluations and reporting, cost recovery and efficiency gains. As of now, the four agencies, with guidance and support from the Executive Boards, are the most harmonized with respect to cost classification and their cost recovery policy is more harmonized than any other two agencies in the United Nations system.
- 16. Lessons learned and cost efficiencies. The effort to harmonize cost classification and cost recovery policies originated in 2009, with the Executive Boards directing UNDP, UNFPA and UNICEF (UN Women formed in 2010) to present a roadmap to achieve by 2014 harmonized budgets within the context of new strategic plans. Having now fulfilled this vision, the agencies agree that there are advantages in continuing to have a harmonized rate for comparable activities.
- 17. Delinking of the resident coordinator system. A reinvigorated resident coordinator system stands at the centre of a repositioned United Nations development system at the country level, with an enhanced coordination function promising to add critical value to the United Nations country team support to national development priorities. Among the four agencies, General Assembly resolution 72/279 affects UNDP most directly, with changes to its management and oversight structure and related critical cost-cutting functions, as the agency works to seamlessly enable this transition, while serving in an integrator role and as the principal operational support provider to the new resident coordinator system. In doing so, UNDP remains committed to an optimally repositioned United Nations development system and to the harmonized cost classification and cost recovery policy in order to deliver on the 2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development. The discussion on critical cross cutting functions while proposed to be retained as a part of the cost recovery policy may require further elaboration, in particular for UNDP,

where there has been a higher impact of the de-linking process. It is envisaged that this will be addressed in the final policy framework for the second regular session of 2020.

18. Independent assessment. During 2016, a report entitled Independent and external assessment on the consistency and alignment of cost recovery with General Assembly resolution 67/226 was published for review and consideration by the Boards and the agencies. The contents of this report were subsequently discussed at length and the recommendations therein have been put into effect with the Executive Board decision on cost classification. The specific recommendation relating to discounted cost recovery rates for large-volume contributions was also discussed at length and finally rejected as it contradicted separate Board decisions to boost contributions of core resources and the full recovery of costs while minimizing the cross-subsidization of resources.

V. Cost recovery: basis and principles

- 19. The cost recovery basis and principles, as endorsed by the Executive Boards in decisions 2013/9 (UNDP/UNFPA), 2013/5 (UNICEF) and 2013/2 (UN-Women), were recently reiterated in the joint paper on cost recovery (DP/FPA-ICEF-UNW/2018/1) presented at the second regular session 2018 (see annex 4).
- 20. Cost recovery refers to the requirement of the organization to ensure that regular resources are not used to subsidize the implementation of programmes funded from other resources. It is essential that the organization recover all of its costs if it is to remain sustainable. The cost-recovery methodology recognizes that certain functions integral to the existence and advancement of an organization's mandate must be carried out regardless of the volume of programme implementation. Therefore, funding for these critical functions must be assured from regular resources.
- 21. The overarching principles the agencies observed in defining the cost-recovery approaches discussed in this paper include: (a) continuing a harmonized approach across all four entities; (b) maximizing the allocation of regular resources to programmatic activities; (c) minimizing cross-subsidization between regular resources and other resources; and (d) continuing to be efficient and competitive within the overall development cooperation context.
- 22. A harmonized approach to cost recovery can include harmonization of cost-recovery methodology, cost classifications and cost-recovery rates. The current cost-recovery policy encompasses all three in an effort to reduce competition between agencies based on rates and to lower thresholds for collaboration among United Nations agencies in line with the Secretary General's funding compact.
- 23. Full cost recovery includes both direct and indirect costs. Costs are categorized as direct (directly linked and traceable to a programme or project and to benefits derived by programme/project beneficiaries) or as indirect (not directly linked or traceable to a programme/project). Direct costs are recovered from regular resources or other resources depending on the funding source of the programme or project. Examples of direct costs relating to programmes/projects include:
- (a) Costs of missions and travel incurred specifically to carry out or support project activities;
- (b) Cost of staff and consultants hired for the project;
- (c) Cost of policy advisory services (fully costed: staff cost, share of office rent, utilities, communications, supplies, office security);
- (d) Cost of processing transactional services (finance, administration, procurement, human resources, logistics);
- (e) Equipment, including information technology equipment, maintenance, licenses and support for the programme/project;
- (f) Programme/project audit and evaluation fees.
- 24. Indirect costs are associated with the organizational structure and services necessary to support implementation of development programmes and projects (the costs of running the

organization). Indirect costs are allocated to programmes/projects and are recovered through application of indirect cost-recovery rates as a percentage fee on direct costs. Indirect costs are included in the organizations' institutional budgets; thus, the indirect cost-recovery model is designed to recover the designated costs of the institutional budget. Examples of indirect costs of an organization's activities include:

- (a) Corporate executive management;
- (b) Corporate resource mobilization, partnership relations, and corporate advocacy and communications;
- (c) Corporate accounting and financial management staff;
- (d) Institutional legal support;
- (e) Corporate human resources management;
- (f) Country office, regional or corporate management;
- (g) Internal audit and investigation function at headquarters and unit level.

Current harmonized cost recovery policy

- 25. The current cost recovery policy was endorsed by the Executive Boards in decisions 2013/9 (UNDP/UNFPA), 2013/5 (UNICEF) and 2013/2 (UN-Women), and was recently reiterated in the joint paper on cost recovery (DP/FPA-ICEF-UNW/2018/1) presented at the second regular session 2018 and reaffirmed in Executive Board decisions 2018/21 (UNDP/UNFPA), 2018/21 (UNICEF) and 2018/6 (UN-Women).
- 26. The current harmonized approach to indirect cost recovery is based on the principle that the methodologies for recovering costs and their classification, by type or category, are aligned for the four agencies. The approved cost categories are: 1
- (a) Development activities (programme and development effectiveness categories);
- (b) United Nations development coordination;
- (c) Management;
- (d) Special-purpose activities.
- 27. The current indirect cost-recovery methodology identifies the following functions to be covered solely from regular resources. For UNDP and UNICEF, some of these functions may also be directly funded from programmes/projects:²
- (a) Development effectiveness activities that contribute directly to the achievement of development results;
- (b) United Nations development coordination (largely agency-specific, not harmonized among the four agencies);
- (c) Critical cross-cutting management functions that are integral to the existence and advancement of the mandate;³
- (d) Non-comparable special-purpose activities (largely agency-specific, not harmonized among the four agencies).
- 28. The balance of the institutional budget is covered by the indirect cost-recovery rate, proportionally between regular resources and other resources.
- 29. In the context of the current cost-recovery framework, there is no duplication in recovery of direct programme/project costs and indirect costs. It should be noted that the agencies have faced challenges in implementing direct cost recovery. Some funding partners and national government implementing partners are unwilling to include all eligible direct costs in programme budgets.

_

¹ Please refer to the glossary (annex 6) for definitions of cost categories.

² Per Executive Board document DP-FPA/2013/1-E/ICEF/2013/8, paragraph 8, costs classified as 'development effectiveness' are an integral part of development activities and therefore directly contribute to the achievement of development results. They are directly funded from RR and OR.

³ Please refer to the glossary (annex 6) for an explanation of the concept.

- 30. In decisions 2013/9 (UNDP/UNFPA), 2013/5 (UNICEF) and 2013/2 (UN-Women), the Executive Boards approved a harmonized methodology for calculating indirect cost-recovery rates. A harmonized standard cost-recovery rate of 8 per cent for other resources (non-core) contributions was endorsed, consistent with the principle of full cost recovery as mandated by the OCPR.
- 31. In those decisions, the Executive Boards also endorsed: (a) differentiated rates lower than 8 per cent for thematic contributions (7 per cent); and (b) pre-existing preferential rates for government cost sharing, South-South contributions and private-sector contributions. It should be noted that the combined effect of the differentiated rates affects the overall effective indirect cost-recovery rate; the effective indirect cost-recovery rate will always be lower than the standard rate of 8 per cent, as it is a net result of application of all the various rates, all of which are lower than the standard 8 per cent.

VI. Cost recovery: proposed approach

- 32. The proposed approach going forward on cost recovery is to retain the current cost recovery policy, updated for the cost classification enhancements endorsed by the Executive Boards at the second regular session 2019 in decisions 2019/21 (UNDP/UNFPA), 2019/28 (UNICEF) and 2019/12 (UN-Women). The application of these harmonized categories under the proposed changes will show the 'independent oversight and assurance activities' separately, lead to revised management and critical cross-cutting management functions, the latter due to the effects of the de-linking of the resident coordinator function to the UNDP management structure. The areas of change are marked in bold and underlined in the copy of the current cost recovery policy below.
- 33. "The current harmonized approach to indirect cost recovery is based on the principle that the methodologies for recovering costs and their classification by type, or category, are aligned for the four agencies. The approved cost categories are:
- (a) Development activities (composed of programme and development effectiveness categories);
- (b) United Nations development coordination;
- (c) Removed: Independent oversight and assurance activities from management;
- (d) Added: Independent oversight and assurance activities;
- (e) Special-purpose activities.
- 34. The current indirect cost-recovery methodology identifies the following functions to be covered solely from regular resources. For UNDP and UNICEF, some of these functions may also be directly funded from programmes/projects:
- (a) Development effectiveness activities, which contribute directly to the achievement of development results;
- (b) United Nations development coordination: largely agency-specific, not harmonized among the four agencies;
- (c) **Removed:** Independent oversight and assurance activities from critical cross-cutting management functions: integral to the existence and advancement of the mandate;
- (d) Added: Critical cross-cutting independent oversight and assurance activities;
- (e) Non-comparable special-purpose activities: largely agency-specific, not harmonized among the four agencies.
- 35. The balance of the institutional budget is covered by the indirect cost-recovery rate, proportionally between regular and other resources.
- 36. In the context of the current cost-recovery framework, there is no duplication in recovery of direct programme/project costs and indirect costs. It should be noted that the agencies have faced challenges in implementing direct cost recovery. Some funding and national government implementing partners are unwilling to include all eligible direct costs in programme budgets.

- 37. In decisions 2013/9 (UNDP/UNFPA), 2013/5 (UNICEF) and 2013/2 (UN-Women), the Executive Boards approved a harmonized methodology for calculating indirect cost-recovery rates. A harmonized standard cost-recovery rate of 8 per cent for other resources (non-core) contributions was endorsed, consistent with the principle of full cost recovery as mandated by the OCPR.
- 38. In those decisions, the Executive Boards also endorsed: (a) differentiated rates lower than 8 per cent for thematic contributions (7 per cent); and (b) pre-existing preferential rates for government cost sharing, South-South contributions and private-sector contributions. It should be noted that the combined effect of the differentiated rates affects the overall effective indirect costrecovery rate; the effective indirect cost-recovery rate will always be lower than the standard rate of 8 per cent, as it is a net result of application of all the various rates, all of which are lower than the standard 8 per cent."

VII. Cost recovery: rates

- 39. During 2014-2018, the agencies were compliant with their respective Executive Board decisions on cost recovery. 4 The table below summarizes the actual financial performance for the five-year period and the number of waivers approved by each agency. The effective rate represents the actual cost-recovery rate realized after taking into account the effect of differentiated rates, pre-existing preferential rates and waivers granted each year. Note that the number of waivers granted has considerably declined over the past five years, and is limited to exceptional cases at the discretion of each agency's senior management and reported to the Executive Board annually. The agencies propose to maintain this current system for managing waivers.
- 40. Table 3 below indicates the financial impact of differentiated rates compared to the 8 per cent rate, broken down by financial impact in four categories, where applicable, as: (a) waivers; (b) thematic funding; (c) framework agreements; and (d) preferential rates. Table 4 has an overview of the differentiated rates concerned.

Table 1 Evidence of effective average indirect cost-recovery rate for each agency, 2014-2018

Effective average indirect cost-recovery rates	2014	2015	2016	2017	2018	2014-2018 (weighted average)
UNDP	6.1%	6.3%	6.4%	6.1%	6.2%	6.2%
UNFPA	7.07%	7.1%	7.27%	7.33%	7.26%	7.21%
UNICEF	6.3%	6.5%	6.6%	6.5%	6.3%	6.4%
UN-Women	7.12%	7%	7.14%	7.25%	7%	7.1%

Table 2 Waivers granted, by agency, 2014-2018

Number of waivers	2014	2015	2016	2017	2018	Total
UNDP	24	9	12	6	5	56
UNFPA	4	4	4	7	10	29
UNICEF	1	9	0	2	5	17
UN-Women	1	1	6	5	10	23

⁴ For UNDP, this includes Executive Board-approved transitional measures of \$199 million during 2014-2017 per EB decision 2013/28.

Table 3
Financial impact of the differentiated cost-recovery rate, by agency, 2014-2018

Financial impact by agency and category	2014	2015	2016	2017	2018	2014-2018 (average)
UNDP 5						(**************************************
Waivers	\$21.7m	\$18.9m	\$20.6m	\$29.2m	\$19.4m	\$22.0m
Agreements with multilateral partners	\$9.1m	\$7.9m	\$6.8m	\$9.3m	\$6.5m	\$7.9m
Thematic contributions	\$1.1m	\$1.0m	\$0.5m	\$0.3m	\$0.4m	\$0.7m
Preferential rates (programme country)	\$32.9m	\$33.9m	\$30.4m	\$37.6m	\$40.2m	\$35.0m
Total impact UNFPA 6	\$64.8m	\$61.5m	\$58.3m	\$76.4m	\$66.6m	\$65.5m
UNFPA						
Waivers	\$0.12m	\$0.18m	\$0.07m	\$0.18m	\$0.36m	\$0.18m
Legacy agreements	\$0.90m	\$0.65m	\$0.28m	\$0.11m	\$0.00m	\$0.39m
Programme country	\$0.45m	\$0.68m	\$0.53m	\$0.83m	\$1.71m	\$0.84m
Thematic trust funds	\$1.90m	\$1.51m	\$1.31m	\$1.24m	\$1.40m	\$1.47m
Various umbrella agreements – European Community, UN pooled / harmonized	\$1.00m	\$1.20m	\$1.30m	\$1.14m	\$1.33m	\$1.19m
Total impact	\$4.37m	\$4.22m	\$3.49m	\$3.50m	\$4.80m	\$4.08m
UNICEF						
Waivers	\$0.01m	\$1.6m	\$0.0	\$18.4m ⁷	\$0.9m ⁸	\$4.2m
Cumulative impact of differentiated cost recovery rates	\$57.3m	\$57.9m	\$59m	\$70m	\$82m	\$65.3m
UN-Women						
Legacy agreements	\$0.27m	\$0.23m	\$0.022m	\$0.015m	\$0.014	\$0.56m
Waivers		\$0.026m	\$0.018m	\$0.009m	\$0.030	\$0.95m
Various umbrella agreements	\$0.25m	\$0.28m	\$0.24m	\$0.43m	\$0.38m	\$1.6m
Total impact	\$0.52m	\$0.54m	\$0.28m	\$0.47m	\$0.42m	\$2.2m

41. Table 3 above reflects the financial impact of the differentiated cost recovery rates for the agencies. It provides empirical evidence over the five-year period during which the present policy has been in effect. It indicates broadly that the financial impact of cost recovery waivers and

⁵ Financial impact in line with details provided on differentiated rates and waivers provided to in DP/2019/10/Annex 5.

⁶ 2014-2017 as reported in DP/FPA-ICEF-UNW/2018/1. 2018 as reported in DP/FPA/2019/4 (Part1/Add1).

 $^{^{7}}$ \$18.4m represents two waivers in 2017 on two agreements signed for the total value of \$327.8m.

⁸ 2018 waivers and their impact were reported in the 2018 annual report of the UNICEF Executive Director (E/ICEF/2019/10).

legacy agreements has been declining in terms of net dollar value. While not conclusive, the data indicates that preferential rates have been useful in acknowledging different sources of funds.

- 42. It is important to emphasize that there is no direct correlation between cost recovery rates and resource mobilization incentives. In the agencies' experience, contributions are premised on an organization's given mandate, business model and operational efficiency, and the quality of results/outcomes delivered. Only after these criteria have been rigorously reviewed and evaluated does the question of a given agency's cost recovery generally arise.
- 43. However, there is indicative evidence that in certain instances, differentiated rates have been a useful tool to acknowledge and diversify among funding sources. To this end, the current model with differentiated rates is broadly serving its purpose in terms of contributing to incentives for more support from programme countries, hence broadening the funding base. In another area, the 7 per cent charge for thematic and pooled funds has helped the agencies make the case for thematic funding in certain instances. However, thematic funding for the agencies as a whole has not dramatically increased.
- 44. These discussions have been part of the ongoing structured funding dialogues between agencies and Member States. An indirect cost recovery rate is not meant to be an instrument to incentivize fundraising; rather it provides a budgetary mechanism for an organization to recover the indirect costs that it has incurred, which is important for organizational sustainability. These differentiated rates have enabled the agencies to broaden their respective funding bases, thereby more effectively fundraising for their strategic plans, and helping to meet their strategic objectives. Therefore, the agencies propose to retain the schema of differentiated rates at current levels.

Table 4 Overview of the differentiated cost-recovery rates, by agency

Contribution type	UNDP	UNFPA	UN-Women	UNICEF
				Public/private sector
Non-thematic contributions	8%	8%	8%	8%
Thematic contributions	7%	7%	8%	7% / 5%
Various umbrella agreements (formal existing inter-institutional agreements) ⁹	Based on the respective umbrella agreement			
Private-sector contributions in programme countries	8%	8%	8%	N/A / 5%
Government cost-sharing contributions	Minimum of 3%	5%	3%-5%	5% / N/A
South-South contributions	3%-5%	5%	3%-5%	5% / N/A
Multi-partner trust funds ¹¹	79	6 + 1% adminis	strative agent fee	e

45. The evidence-based financial implications of the application of the current cost-recovery policy model to the Executive Board-approved integrated budgets for 2018-2019 or 2018-2021 for each agency are shown in table 5 below. Annex 5 provides detailed calculations (based on the respective UNDP, UNICEF, UNFPA and UN-Women integrated resource plans and integrated budgets for 2018-2021) of the notional indirect cost recovery rates for each agency, taking into account the implementation of the recommendations on cost classification endorsed by the Executive Boards at the second regular session 2019. Hence, this provides a forward perspective on the cost recovery rates. For both UNDP and UNICEF, the notional indirect cost-recovery rates are 6.2 per cent and 6.6 per cent, respectively, which is below the standard rate of 8 per cent. For UNFPA and UN-Women, the opposite is true, its notional cost-recovery rate is above the standard rate, at 10.3 per cent and 9.2 per cent respectively. 10

⁹ See DP-FPA/2013/1-E/ICEF/2013/8, table 5 for a detailed listing.

¹⁰ The notional rate of 9.2% does not yet reflect the full implementation of recommendation 2 due to the pending change management exercise.

Table 5
Overview of notional indirect cost recovery rates under the current model

Notional indirect cost recovery rate under the current model	UNDP	UNICEF	UNFPA	UN-Women
before implementation of recommendations	6.6%	6.6%	10.4%	9.4%
after implementation of recommendations	6.2%	6.6%	10.3%	9.2%

VIII. Cost recovery: advantages and challenges

- 46. The agencies recognize that due to their different mandates, structures and economies of scale, the calculation of a single notional cost recovery rate for the four agencies is mathematically impossible. In principle, net the effect of differentiated rates and waivers, where the harmonized standard rate is lower than the notional cost recovery rate, the shortfall would be funded from regular (core) resources. Similarly, where the harmonized standard rate is higher than the notional cost recovery rate, the difference is funded from other (non-core) resources.
- 47. In the humanitarian realm, there is pressure from donors to provide rates lower than the harmonized rates, for example, for direct cash transfers to beneficiaries. In addition, other United Nations development system agencies have different rates, mostly lower. This creates challenges in negotiating joint programming.
- 48. Nevertheless, the agencies agree that it is more beneficial to continue to have a harmonized rate for comparable activities. The current policy provides a clear harmonized framework with standard and differentiated indirect cost-recovery rates approved by the Executive Boards. A harmonized rate is an integral dimension to United Nations coherence, particularly at the country level. It also reduces competition among the four agencies (though not necessarily United Nations system-wide), simplifies negotiation, reduces transaction costs, and promotes communication, mainstreaming and uniformity across joint programmes.
- 49. An agency-specific rate may be more appropriate to achieve full cost recovery, but at the expense of the advantages stated above. Hence, harmonization has not yielded a full benefit and continues to be a challenge because other United Nations entities, such as the United Nations Secretariat, each have a different cost recovery methodology and cost recovery rate.
- 50. Having collectively harmonized their cost classification methodology and cost recovery policy, UNDP, UNFPA, UNICEF and UN-Women recommend maintaining the current system. However, if the Executive Board decides to revert to an earlier, non-harmonized approach, this too may be pursued. Therefore, a clear directive from the Executive Board would be required.
- 51. The current harmonized approach to cost classification and cost recovery has led to significant changes in each agency's financial management and reporting. The agencies believe it is more beneficial to focus on working with other agencies to further harmonize cost recovery within the United Nations system as part of the Secretary-General's funding compact.
- 52. The current approach, although imperfect, is acceptable to the four agencies, and forms a good basis for discussing harmonization across the United Nations system. The model, and its application is practical and works. Further, from 2022 onwards, it will be premised on a more harmonized application of the cost classification categories.

IX. The case for continued harmonization

53. The calculation of a single indirect cost-recovery rate across multiple United Nations organizations is not possible because of the differences in economies of scale, mandates and structures. As indicated above, net the effect of differentiated rates and waivers, where the harmonized standard rate is lower than the notional cost recovery rate, the shortfall would be

funded from regular (core) resources; similarly, where the harmonized standard rate is higher than the notional cost recovery rate, the difference is funded from other (non-core) resources.

54. Table 6 below shows a comparative analysis of harmonized versus organization-specific cost recovery rates, including opportunities, challenges and risks.

Table 6 Organization-specific rates versus harmonized rates

Organization-specific rates

Harmonized rates
Opportunities | Allows agencies flexibility to properly charge all Simplifies negotiation. Reduced

Opportunities	Allows agencies flexibility to properly charge all organizational costs to projects according to agency-specific cost basis.	Simplifies negotiation. Reduces transaction costs. Eliminates undue competition for funds. Promotes United Nations coherence.
Challenges	Results in undue competition among agencies, and could result in higher transaction costs, particularly for multi-partner trust funds.	Determining a harmonized cost recovery rate for four agencies is a demanding exercise due to different economies of scale, size, scope, mandates.
Risks	Potentially results in inadequate allocation of resources across agencies, as donors could choose agencies based on rate rather than based on capacity/mandate. Potentially undermines joint programming initiatives.	Results in varying levels of core contributions to organizational costs per agency – due to different economies of scale, size, scope, mandates. At the margin, may result in underrecovery or over-recovery.

- 55. While acknowledging the opportunities, challenges and risks noted above for both organization-specific rates and harmonized rates, the agencies are strongly recommending the continuation of the harmonized rate option for other resources cost recovery, which has been in effect for the past two quadrennial budgets. Harmonized rates are an integral dimension of United Nations coherence, particularly at the country level, and to providing the right incentives for 'delivering as one' and joint programming.
- 56. General Assembly resolution 72/279 calls for a further harmonization of cost recovery by individual United Nations development system entities. In this regard, it commended UNDP, UNFPA, UNICEF and UN-Women for their harmonized cost-recovery framework, and further encouraged them to work with other entities of the United Nations development system, after due consideration by their respective governing bodies, to adopt a harmonized cost-recovery framework. The four agencies have shared information with the United Nations Sustainable Development Group entities at the High-Level Committee on Management finance and budget network meetings, and work has begun at the finance and budget network level on this topic.
- 57. In this connection, the report of the Secretary General, *Implementation of General Assembly resolution 71/243 on the quadrennial comprehensive policy review of operational activities for development of the United Nations system, 2019: funding compact* (A/74/73/Add.1–E/2019/14/Add.1), stipulates that the entities of the United Nations Sustainable Development Group commit to accelerating entity-specific and collective efforts to improve transparency, reporting and system-wide evaluations. The report also indicates that addressing outstanding gaps, inconsistencies and weaknesses in those areas is a condition for increasing the trust of Member States and the general public in the value of the United Nations development system work, and that in addition to full compliance with established cost-recovery policies, entities of the United Nations Sustainable Development Group commit to improving the comparability of cost classifications and definitions. This will enhance transparency and enable a better-informed dialogue between the entities and their partners on the true cost of delivering mandates, programmes and projects. It will also encourage greater collaboration among entities even as they apply different recovery rates according to their different business models.

X. Elements of a decision

- 58. The Executive Board may wish to:
- (a) Take note of the joint preliminary comprehensive proposal on the cost recovery policy [DP/FPA/ICEF-UNW/2020/1];

On cost classification:

- (b) Endorse the agencies' recommendation on the definition of independent oversight and assurance activities as "these costs comprise activities and associated costs supporting the independent audit and investigations and corporate evaluation functions";
- (c) Approve the creation of a separate cost classification for such activities as part of the institutional budget effective 2022-2025 (2022-2023 for UN-Women);

On cost recovery:

- (d) Recall the harmonized cost recovery policy endorsed by the Executive Boards in decision 2013/9 (for UNDP and UNFPA), decision 2013/5 (for UNICEF) and decision 2013/2 (for UN-Women), which was reaffirmed in decisions 2018/21 (UNDP/UNFPA), 2018/21 (UNICEF) and 2018/6 (UN-Women);
- (e) Request UNDP, UNFPA, UNICEF and UN-Women to fully update the current harmonized cost recovery policy to account for the appropriate cost classification changes in line with the aforementioned Executive Board decisions and on the basis of the present report and to present the final comprehensive proposal for decision by the Executive Boards at the second regular sessions 2020.

Annexes

A. Historical context of cost recovery

- 1. In 2009, UNDP, UNFPA and UNICEF were requested to present a roadmap to achieve harmonized integrated budgets by 2014 in the context of new strategic plans. This required the three organizations to address and better harmonize their actions to the extent feasible in three major areas:
- (a) Alignment of planned results presented in budgetary documents to the respective strategic plans and clear linkage between planned results and budgetary allocations;
- (b) Classification of activities and their associated costs;
- (c) Assessment of the impact of the approved cost definitions and classifications of the harmonized cost-recovery rates
- 2. With respect to the first area, alignment of planned results:
- (a) Harmonization was achieved in 2011 ("joint informal note of UNDP, UNFPA and UNICEF on the road map to an integrated budget: cost classification and results-based budgeting, prepared in response to decision 2010/32 of the Executive Board of UNDP and of UNFPA, and decision 2010/20 of the Executive Board of UNICEF, containing: (a) information on differences in the categorization of costs into cost classifications; and (b) an informal mock-up illustrating the format of key budget tables and accompanying explanations") as part of the Executive Boards of UNDP/UNFPA in decision 2011/10 and UNICEF decision 2011/32.
- 3. With respect to the second area, classification of activities and their associated costs:
- (a) Harmonization was achieved in 2010 (Executive Board documents DP-FPA/2010/1 and E/ICEF/2010/AB/L.10) as part of the Executive Boards of UNDP/UNFPA in decision 2010/32 and UNICEF decision 2010/20.
- (b) The cost classifications endorsed in 2010 was a result of a joint review undertaken by the agencies in response to decision 2010/2 of UNDP/UNFPA Executive Board and decision 2010/5 of the UNICEF Executive Board, which requested the agencies to jointly review the then existing cost definitions and classifications of activities and associated costs of 1997 (DP/1997/10, DP/1997/10/Add.1, E/ICEF/1997/AB/L.3 and E/ICEF/1997/AB/L.3/Add.1).
- (c) Further, Executive Boards in decisions 2018/21 (UNDP/UNFPA/UNICEF) and 2018/6 (UN-Women) requested the agencies to "jointly review existing cost definitions and classifications of activities and associated costs, with a view to further harmonize their approaches by determining common definitions of cost categories and corresponding activities and functions at a granular level, while taking into account the different business models of the individual agencies". Executive Board document DP/FOA-ICEF-UNW/2019/1 provided recommendations for further harmonization of cost classifications. Executive Board decision 2019/21 (UNDP/UNFPA) and decision 2019/28 (UNICEF) and decision 2019/12 (UN-Women) endorsed two of the three recommendations proposed by the agencies, resulting in further harmonization.
- 4. With respect to the third area, cost recovery:
 - (a) Harmonization was achieved in 2013 as described in Executive Board documents DP-FPA/2012/1E/ICEF/2012/AB/L.6 and DP-FPA/2013/1-E/ICEF/2013/8 and approved through Executive Board decisions 2013/9 (UNDP/UNFPA), 2013/5 (UNICEF) and 2013/2 (UNwomen). This harmonization was a result of thorough joint review undertaken by the agencies derived from:
 - Benchmarking with international organizations for comparative purposes and best practices;
 - ii. Analysis of the agencies' business models in the context of the integrated budget and new strategic plans from 2014 onwards; and
 - iii. Development of a harmonized conceptual framework for defining and attributing organizational costs and cost-recovery calculation methodology.

- (b) In 2017, the Executive Boards (UNDP/UNFPA decisions 2017/11 and 2017/14, UNICEF decisions 2017/7 and 2017/14 and UN-Women decision 2017/2) asked the agencies to continue consultations with Member States regarding the cost-recovery policy and to present said proposals for consideration. Executive Board document DP/FPA-ICEF-UNW/2018/1 was presented in response to that request.
- (c) In 2018, the Executive Boards (UNDP/UNFPA/UNICEF decisions 2018/21 and UNWomen 2018/6) asked the agencies to:
 - Present a preliminary comprehensive proposal on the cost-recovery policy for consideration by the Executive Board at its first regular session in 2020, with a view to present a final comprehensive proposal for decision of the Executive Board at its second regular session in 2020;
 - ii. Review, in a comprehensive manner, cost-recovery rates, as part of the comprehensive proposal; and
 - iii. Present an assessment of the reasons why full cost recovery is not currently being achieved, as part of the comprehensive proposal.

B. Details of the cost classification categories at the granular level

	UNDP	UNFPA	UNICEF	UN-Women
Development activities				
S	At country level: Programme/project policy and advocacy, technical expertise and support; Programme/project monitoring and evaluation; Programme/ project procurement and logistics; Direct programme/project planning; Programme/ project communications; Direct programme/project administrative and operations support; Formulation/management of programme pipeline/new business development; Programme policy advisory services; In-country development effectiveness support for programming; Operational/ administrative support services dedicated to projects: financial services, Procurement services, HR, Logistics support, Field security, Equipment and Asset management, including ICT equipment.	At country level: Programme/project policy and advocacy, technical expertise and support; Direct humanitarian response; Programme/project monitoring and evaluation; Programme/project procurement and logistics; Direct programme/project planning; Programme/project communications and partnerships; Direct programme/project administrative and operations support	At country level: Programme/project policy and advocacy, technical expertise and support; Direct humanitarian response; Programme/project monitoring and evaluation; Programme/project procurement and logistics; Direct programme/project planning; Programme/project communications; Direct programme/project administrative and operations support	At country level: Programme/project policy and advocacy, technical expertise and support; Direct humanitarian response; Programme/ project monitoring and evaluation; Direct programme/project administrative and operations support.
Programme activities	At regional level: Programme/project policy, advocacy, technical expertise, coordination and support for regional projects and regional intergovernmental processes; Audit, evaluation and quality assurance services for regional projects; Direct regional programme/project administrative and operations support; Direct programmatic support and oversight of country offices and programmes; Cross- country capacity-building and knowledge-sharing.	At regional level: Advocacy and policy dialogue with regional and subregional entities and in multi-country settings; Regional inter-agency collaboration and coordination; Provision of technical advisory support to country programmes and intergovernmental regional processes; Direct programmatic support and oversight of country offices and programmes; Cross-country capacity- building and knowledge- sharing; Regional programme coordination and implementation, including knowledge management; Direct programme/ project administrative and operations support; Direct programme/ project communication and media functions.	Creation and dissemination of global and regional public goods, including monitoring and analysing the situation of children for global accountability; Contribution to and strengthening relevant global and regional policy and coordination systems; Contribution to the relevant global evidence base and normative guidelines.	At regional level: Empowering and supporting country- level capacities and processes; Overseeing country and region- based delivery across normative, policy, advocacy and United Nations coordination roles; Leveraging regional United Nations coordination mechanisms and liaising closely with other regional bodies; Cross-country capacity-building and knowledge-sharing; Regional programme coordination and implementation, including knowledge management; Direct programme/ project administrative and operations support; Direct programme/ project communication and media functions.
	At global/interregional levels: Human Development Report, including support to preparation of national	At headquarters level: Generation, promotion, utilization of state-of-the- art technical knowledge; Promotion of international	Global and regional programme resources are implemented by each of the seven UNICEF regional offices as well as	At headquarters level: Programme and project guidance; Strategic programme

	UNDP	UNFPA	UNICEF	UN-Women
	human development reports; Programme/project policy and advocacy, technical expertise and support to global projects; Programme/project monitoring and evaluation of global projects; Audit and quality assurance services for global projects; Direct global programme/project administrative and operations support.	norms and standards; Building global technical partnerships; Humanitarian response and coordination; Global monitoring of implementation of the Sendai Framework for Disaster Risk Reduction; Coordination and management of prevention/response to sexual and gender-based violence; Strengthening/expansion of surge capacity; Global intergovernmental policy dialogue for International Conference on Population and Development and Sustainable Development Goal follow- up and review; Global outreach with parliamentarians and civil society; Complementary field support in areas not available at regional level undertaken by: Technical Division; Humanitarian Office; Policy and Strategy Division; Division for Communications and Strategic Partnerships; Procurement Services Branch; Liaison Office in Addis Ababa.	relevant headquarters divisions and offices, including: Programme; Data, Research and Policy; Supply; Evaluation; Emergency Programmes; and Communication.	direction and oversight; Programme/project and operational support; Support to inter-agency coordination and normative processes; Crisis and humanitarian response; Development of global reports; Management of global projects for (a) global norms and standard; (b) political participation, governance and data; (c) women's economic empowerment; (d) ending violence against women and girls; (e) peace and security, humanitarian response.
eness activities	At country level: Country office presence focusing on strategic country programming (CPD formulation and participation in UNDAF process); Programme quality assurance.	At country level: Deputy Representatives (or national equivalents, assistant representatives) performing an overall programme development, oversight and guidance role.	At country level: Deputy Representatives performing an overall programme development, oversight and guidance role; Communication officers; select monitoring and evaluation officers.	At country level: Deputy Representatives (or national equivalents, assistant representative) performing an overall programme development, oversight and guidance role; Programme/project posts performing an overall programme oversight and guidance role.
Development effectiveness activities	At regional level: Deputy Regional Directors performing an overall programme development and guidance; Overall programme development, oversight and guidance role; Technical advisers; Regional development effectiveness support for South-South cooperation programme.	At regional level: Deputy Regional Directors performing an overall programme development, oversight and guidance role; Overall programme support to country offices, including monitoring and evaluation.	At regional level: Deputy Regional Directors performing an overall programme development, oversight and guidance role; Technical advisers.	At regional level: Deputy Regional Directors performing an overall programme development, oversight and guidance role; Technical advisers; Overall programme support to country offices.
	At global/interregional levels: bureaux and offices responsible for programme and technical policy formulation and guidance: Bureau for Policy and	At headquarters level: Policy and Strategy Division, except personnel whose work contributes directly to strategic plan development outcomes; Humanitarian Office	At headquarters level: Programme Division; Division of Data, Research and Policy; Field Results Group; Office of Emergency Programmes; Supply	At headquarters level: Programme Division; Policy Division; Humanitarian Office; Civil Society.

	UNDP	UNFPA	UNICEF	UN-Women
	Programme Support; Crisis Bureau; United Nations Office for South-South Cooperation, and the Procurement Support Office; Corporate HACT- related activities.	(leadership and operations support); Technical Division (leadership and operations support of the Directorate and each branch); Procurement Services Branch (leadership and operations support); Quality Management Unit in the Division for Management Services, which is primarily dealing with HACT to implementing partners and partner implementation.	Division; Office of Innovation; Office of Research.	
United Nations development coord	dination			
	Contribution to the resident coordinator system.	Contribution to the resident coordinator system.	Contribution to the resident coordinator system; Office of Emergency Programmes: coordination of partners for the humanitarian clusters for water, sanitation and hygiene, nutrition and education, along with the area of responsibility at the global level in child protection.	Contribution to the resident coordinator system United Nations System Coordination Division (headquarters); Regional office directors and drivers (50 per cent cost); Country office representatives/heads of office and drivers (50 per cent cost); Regional office United Nations coordination specialists.
Management activities				
Recurring costs				
Leadership and corporate direction	Executive Office; Ethics Office; Office of the Secretary of the Executive Board, excluding fully reimbursable Executive Board secretariat services provided to other United Nations agencies.	Office of the Executive Director; Ethics Office; Legal Office.	Office of the Executive Director, including Ethics Office and Legal Office.	HQ leadership posts in management and administration and resource mobilization and strategic partnerships.
Corporate financial, ICT and administrative management	Bureau of Management Services (BMS), including Office of Financial Resources Management, Global Shared Services Unit, Procurement Oversight Office; Office of Operations; Centrally managed costs relating to finance, ICT, and administration; Office of Information Management Technology; Legal Support Office; Excludes costs relating to provision of fully reimbursable services provided to other United Nations agencies, which fall under the special-purpose activities classification.	Division for Management Services (excluding Quality Management Unit), IT Solutions Office.	Division of Financial and Administrative Management; Division of Information and Communications Technology.	Division of Management and Administration, includes ICT, legal, finance, budget, facilities, procurement; Centrally managed costs related to IT and administration.
Corporate human resources management	Cost of Office of Human Resources in relation to the UNDP corporate human resources management function, excluding the fully	Division for Human Resources.	Division of Human Resources.	Division of Human Resources.

	UNDP	UNFPA	UNICEF	UN-Women
	reimbursable human resources support provided to other United Nations agencies (covered under special-purpose activities); Centrally managed human resources costs related to staff, learning costs; contribution from UNDP to International Civil Service			
Corporate external relations and partnerships, communications and resources mobilization	Commission. Bureau for External Relations and Advocacy.	Division for Communications and Strategic Partnerships; Executive Board Branch; UNFPA Liaison Offices (except programmatic activities).	Division of Communication; Public Partnerships Division; Private Fundraising and Partnerships Division: (resources supporting specific National Committee and country office fundraising activities are included under special purpose); Office of the Secretary of the Executive Board	Strategic Partnership, Advocacy and Communications and Resource Mobilization; Office of the Secretary of the Executive Board.
Staff and premises security	Security Office	Office of Security Coordinator	Office of Emergency Programmes in close collaboration with the United Nations Department of Safety and Security and other United Nations security	Security Office, MOSS compliance
Field/country office oversight, management and operations support	At country level: Country office leadership, representation, and management functions to UNDP. This includes the full-time Resident Representative function, following the delinking of the resident coordinator role; The costs of country offices' support functions to UNDP referred above exclude costs relating to provision of fully reimbursable services provided to the United Nations agencies, which fall under the special purpose activities classification.	At country level: full cost of: representatives, driver and personal assistant to the Representative Office operations support functions not directly linked to programme support (e.g., operations manager/ international operations manager, finance/administrative, some IT and human resources support posts).	management entities. At country level: full cost of: Representatives and Assistant to the Representative Office operations support functions that are not directly linked to programme support (e.g. operations manager/ international operations manager, finance/ administrative, IT and human resources support posts).	At country level: Representatives/ Heads of Office and driver posts (50 per cent); Full cost of: operations management functions not directly linked to project/programme support (e.g., operations manager/international operations manager, finance/administrative, IT and human resources support posts); Includes a portion of direct programme/project administrative and
Field/country office oversight,	At the regional and headquarters levels: Regional bureaux and regional hub leadership, including representation, and management functions including regional operations support functions not directly linked to programme support.	At regional level: full cost of: Regional Directors, driver and personal assistant to the Director, plus special assistant; Resource mobilization, communications, security and human resources functions; Office operations support functions not directly linked to programme support (e.g., international operations manager, finance/administrative support posts, ICT, etc.).	At regional level: full cost of: Senior leaders in each Regional Office (e.g., Regional Director, Regional Chief of Operations) and operations teams At headquarters level: full cost of: Global Shared Services Centre.	operations support. At regional level: Regional Directors and driver posts (50 per cent) Full cost of: Operations management functions not directly linked to project/ programme support (e.g., operations manager, finance, administration, procurement posts).

	UNDP	UNFPA	UNICEF	UN-Women
Non-recurring costs				
Non-recurring costs	At country and headquarters levels: strategic investments to support accelerated programme delivery by improving: (1) business model performance: (a) project delivery and cost recovery; (b) cost effectiveness and efficier and (c) operational service arrangements for the Uni Nations system; (2) busin model innovation, e.g., for service consultancies country offices, clusterin services.	ted ted tess tee- in		N/A
Independent oversight and assura	nce activities			
Corporate oversight and assurance	Office of Audit and Investigations; Independent Evaluation Office; Ombudsman; Board of Auditors, Joint Inspection Unit.	Office of Audit and Investigations Services; Evaluation Office; Board of Auditors, Joint Inspection Unit.	Office of Internal Audit and Investigation; Evaluation Office.	Independent Evaluation and Audit Services Office; Board of Auditors.
Special-purpose activities				
Capital investments Private-sector fundraising	MOSS compliance.	ICT transformation.	Technology-supported organizational solution Allocations to offices to support compliance with MOSS; Eco-efficiency initiatives and capital expenditure linked to premises management Includes activities and estimated resource requirements of Private Fundraising and Partner Division to support speprivate sector fundrais initiatives of the Nation Committees and UNIC country offices. The activities of the Nation Committees and UNIC country offices.	e erships ecific ing
Other, including procurement services			related to implementat the UNICEF Private Fundraising and Partne Plan, 2018-2021 and tl appropriation for the re resource requirements presented to the Execu Board for approval on annual basis. Supply Division admir procurement services of behalf of Governments other partners to comp UNICEF programmes, services provide partne economical access to s products, which allows to leverage programma results.	erships ne elated will be tive an nisters on s and lement These ers with elected s them

	UNDP	UNFPA	UNICEF	UN-Women
Non-agency specific operations	Support to other United			
	Nations agencies:			
	institutional budget support to			
	UNV, UNCDF; Direct services for United Nations			
	partner agencies under			
	universal price list, local price			
	list, service level agreement			
	arrangements: Ad hoc, payroll,			
	security, payments, Junior			
	Professional Officer-related,			
	procurement, training, benefits			
	management, travel;			
	At country level:			
	Fully reimbursable country			
	office support to other United			
	Nations agencies; excludes			
	country offices' leadership,			
	representation, and			
	management functions to			
	UNDP, which covers the full			
	time Resident Representative			
	function, following the delinking of the resident			
	coordinator role.			
	At headquarter level:			
	Fully reimbursable			
	headquarters-level support to			
	other United Nations agencies;			
	excludes cost of the Bureau of			
	Management Services (BMS)			
	to UNDP relating to the BMS			
	Directorate, Office of			
	Financial Resources			
	Management, Global Shared			
	Services Unit, Office of			
	Information Management			
	Technology, Legal Support			
	Office, Procurement Oversight Office; Office of Operations;			
	Centrally managed costs			
	relating to finance, ICT and			
	administration. Excludes			
	corporate HACT-related			
	activities.			

C. Mock-Up of Recommendation 3

UNDP

Mock-Up of Application of Recommendations 1-2: UNDP

		2818-262	2 milestre				2616-2	NZI Adjusted for	1	didential 2	52.00
	Repair manual	Other countries	Coli marate	Total measures			Sepale		C#	Total researces	
			-		24	feet and the second				-	
of openflorer	_			_	Tetal	Estimated organistation 3. Secretarian artistics	_				% of Total Date
14 - Programs	1,611.4	19,409.6		21,943.8		2.h. Programs	17150	19,475.1		23,191,5	5148
	156.1	15,400.0	372.2	21,945,0			127.6	19,405.1	279.4	783.7	
18- Designat diciona		19.504.3		1000	20.00	18-Designan distress				21,894.8	\$(71)
Track & Development and disc	1,989.5	193963	322.2	21,618.6	98.5%	Track & Brodgeway actions	7,945.6	19,569.8	279.4	20,090,0	98.3% \$77m
I. Lated Sales Andrews medicales will be						E. Loted Nation Strikenson confliction articles	_				
Total - E. Colon Septem designation and designation and dis-	126.0	_		126.0	65%	Trans. It is taked National development constitution as the last	126.0	_		126.9	0.5%
THE R. CHIS. VALUE STREET, STREET, STREET, STREET,	1263			126.0	6374	Committee of the commit	1,360	-		1,06.8	9.5%
	_					E	_				
III. Nanophile artifles II.A. supring coulding beganism beganism Office, Office of						III. Management and other	_				
Safe and Investments and Object Offices	ARLS		1,622.6	1,626.3		Analt and investments and Differ Offices	545.8	- 23	991.7	1,501.5	367
ILS intended (violate little)	32.6	-	9.5	42.1		SEA Internity Francis Office	32.6		9.5	42.1	1000
SC-Otto-c/Ault and brompeles	50.7	-	18.8	69.5		2012 Office of Audit and Severippines	:50.7	· 10	28.8	69.5	
300 - Max Other	- 7.6		- 4	3.6		30.0 - 29 to 2 Office	.36	-	4	3.6	
Subsed receiving	GHA		1,858.7	1,739.5		Selection reading .	602.7		1,020,6	1,682.7	
3.3: severally	25.0			28.0		303 exercising	28.0			28.8	
Sec. III Responsement	706.8		1,856.7	1,397.8	7,459	Sept. 10. Wangstood will like	960.7	-	1,525.6	1,480.7	7,8%
Pl. Special propersy artificials						TV. Sandifference with the					
N.A. Carlo recommon			29.9	29.9		The County Security	_		30.9	31.9	1200
N. S San LNOT company - Dated Names Volumes	42.4	-	41.2	83.6		N St. Inc 1907 grains - Calif Sales Values	42.4	_	41.2	10.6	\$19n
N.E. San UNIV control - Little Sales Capital Territories			46.2	-		N.E. has USE measure. Cond have light Devices.	-		41.2	175	
field	12.2			12.2		Red	12.2	25	1.4	12.2	
NSI-NexUNOP operation remain for limit having parties	10		190.4	1000		25 31 - Nov-1707 speniery version for limit Nation patter	150		190.4	170.4	
rgettim.	7	_		190.4		riptistins	- 1	-			
N.S. Sales in a INV great or abstract by USSP	54.6		211.6	296.2	-	N.B. Salvad and CNOP operation allowated by CNOP	54.6	-	231.6	286.2	
Start -F. Special propers activities	54.6	-	241.5	3963	1,3%	Their IV. Spelat peganic soft-like	54.6		271.5	126.1	1.6%
Total beliefed on power	1,093.9	-	1,634.4	1730.1		Traditional property	1,009.3	-	1,579,9	2,596.2	
Total programmatic orasposate	1,793.6	19,594,3	-	21,299,3		Trial progressed conpresses	1,877.6	19,569.0	4	25,445.4	
										100000	
dissand expenditures (I + E + 30 + 3V)	2,896.9	19,566,7	1,634,4	24,027,6	390.0%	Total Extinated expenditures (I + E + EI + IV)	2,886,9	19,569.8	1,579.9	24,627.6	190.815

Mock-Up of Application of Revised Recommendations 3: UNDP

	3883	1921 Adjusted for	Boome	defeat 1 & 2			2019-2021 Adjusted for Recommendation 1.2 & sectord recommendation 7					
	Regular	Other resources	Cost	Tetal reserve			Regular researce	Other	Cod reserve	Total reserve		
maind represidents			_]	% of Total	Estachd repeditors			-		% of Total	Difference
L Development activities				_	77.00	1. Development activities						
IA-Papane	1,718.0	19,473.1	1.0	21,191,1		1A-Pogunas	17000	19,475.1	1000	21.191.1	9 1	
18- Sections of change	327.6	96.7	279.4	783,7		D-Designan Flations	327.6	96.7	229.4	763.7		
Total - A Production or activities	2,845.6	19.569.8	279.4	21,894,8	91.1%	Total - C Development activities		19,569.8	279.4	21,894.8	91,1%	
log- Libraryman actions	4340.6	19,399,8	61334	21,894,8	41.174	Dried - C Development activates	2,040,61	17,367,63	4/2/4	21,574.5	31.176	
S. Talled Nations development user Electrics and Olive	1		_			E. Callet Nations Employment coordinates with the						
Total - At Claim Vertice Analyses of confidence activities	126.0			126.0	0.5%	Prod - II Trained National Annual Control Con	126.0			126.6	9.5%	
	1240		-	1200	20.4		1,010	_	-		90.14	
III. Management in thirties						III. Management artirities						
10.3 - mortig (nobility belignates 3 shapes Office 90cs of						S.A. reuning tradeling State Office			100	7000		
Audit and benefigitions and Ethior Difficet	545.8	-	991,7	1,537.5	1 1	and the second second	545.8	-	991.7	1,537.5	30	
SUB- Independent Evaluation Office	32.6	17.4	9.5	42.1								
2015-Office of Audit and Security/stone	50.7		18.8	69.5			100			100	6	
ED-Dischlie	3.6	-		3,6		E.S. Olive Office	3.6	-	411	3.6		
Subtotal recenting	632.7		1,029.0	1,652.7		Salould reserving	349,4		991,7	1,541.1		
II. see maring	28.0			28.0		E-serving	28.0			28.8	S	
Lai- II. Response while:	660.7	-	1.021.0	1,680.7	7.0%	Cont - III. Rangement activities	377.4		991,7	1,565.3	6.5%	21111
	-		-			6	_			_	_	
W. Special pargines activities	-		39.9	39.9		IV. Special pergres solicities			39.9	39.9		
W.ACertal involume	-	-	-			SVA - Capital in-common	45.4	-			ē	
IV.B Non-CHOP operations - United Parlame Entertions	42.4	-	41.2	13.6	1 1	NAL No. CRES species - Cond Sunsi Volume	42.4		41.2	10.6		
79.20 - No. UNIF symmetry services for Trime National parties reportments			198.4	199.4		1/120 - Non-ENDP operation - services for Coded Nation garmer experiments			190.4	196.4		
TVB - School are CNSF systems, alcohold by CNSF	54.6		231.6	286.2	I	PCS - School use CNOP operation administrative UNIDP	54.6	-	251.6	286.2	2J	
Son'- M. Special purpose soft-liber	54.6		211.5	326.1	1.4%	Said - N. Sporid pages will like	54,6		271.5	326.1	1.4%	
						F. Dalayonker Droppin and Assessment activities V.A. Independent Drobustion Office	32.6		9.5	42.5	_	
						The state of the s	99.7		18.8	66.5		
						1.9 Office of South and Investigations			_		0.00	T100 -1
						Total - Y. lakepooker Dromgle and American activities	103	-	DIJ.	112.6	0.5%	5111, +
Trial authorized responses.	1,009.3		1,519.9	2,580.2		Detail institutional compression	1,009.3		1,570.9	2,586.2		
Заберография современ	1,877.6	19,569.8	0.00	21,447.4		Total programmile compounds	1,877.6	19,569.8	1+	31,447.4		
						-						

UNICEF

UNIC									П								
UNIC	.E.F	Regular	resources		Cost	Total na	sources	Trust funds			Regular	resources		2018-2021 assumes Gost	Total re	sources	Trust funds
				Рюдатте					Ш					recovery.			
1. Resource	es a vailable	Sm	%	Sm	Sm	Sm	%	Sm		1. Resources available	\$m	%	Sm	Sm	Sm	%	5m
	Opening balance	9623		1,235.9	-	1,798.2		727.0	$\ \ $	Opening balance	562.3		1,235.9	-	1,798.2		727.0
	Income									Income							
	Contribution			16,512.5	-	22,314.4			Ш	Contributions	5,801.9		16,512.5	-	22,314.4		
	Other income					500.0			1	Other income	500.0				500.0		
	Total income	6,301.9		16,512.5		22,814.4			Ш	Total income	6,301.9		16,512.5		22,814.4		
	Tax reimbursement adjustment	(80.0)				(80.0)				Tax reimbursement adjustment	(80.0)				(0.08)		
	Trust fund receipts					-		7,148.0		Trust fund receipts							7,148.0
	Total available	6,784.1		17,748.4	-	24,532.5		7,875.0	Ш	Total available	6,7841		17,748.4	-	24,532.5		7,875.0
2. Use of r	esoures									2. Use of resources							
									Ш								
A.	De velopment.									A. Development							
A.1	Programmes.	4,360.0	67.3%	15,917.3		20,277.3	84.6%	7,116.0		A.1 Programmes	4,360.0	67.9%	15,917.3		20,277.3	84.6%	7,116.0
	Country Programmes	4,140.0	64.5%	15,107.1		19,247.1	80.3%			Country Programmes	4,140.0	64.5%	15,107.1		19,247.1	80.3%	
	Global programme	220.0	3.4%	810.2		1,080.2	4.3%			Global programme	220.0	3.4%	810.2		1,030.2	4.3%	
A.2	De velopment e ffectiveness	589.0	9.2%	133.0	-	721.9	3.0%			A.2 Development effectiveness	589.0	92%	133.0	-	721.9	3.0%	
Subtotal:	De velopment.	4,949.0	77.1%	16,050.3	-	20,999.3	87.6%	7,116.0	1	Subtotal: Development	4,949.0	77.1%	16,050.3	-	20,999.3	87.6%	7,116.0
в.	United Nations development coordination	23.3	0.4%	25.9		49.3	0.2%			B. United Nations development coordination	23.3	0.4%	25.9		49.3	0.2%	
c.	Management	459.9	7.2%	6.4	1.138.0	1.6043	6.7%		1	C Management	446.1	69%	6.4	11039	1556.5	65%	
	*	4111	7.4.70	0.4	4,1.81.0	1,004.7	0.774		1 1	*	440.1	War A	4.4	ajauna.r	April 40 - 4	10.279	
									П	D. Independent Oversight and Assurance Activities							
										D.1 Audit and Investigations	11.0	0.2%		27.1	38.1	0.2%	
										D.2 Corporate Evaluation	2.8	0.0%		6.9	9.7	0.0%	
										Subtotal: Independent Oversight and Assurance Activities	13.8	0.2%		34.1	47.8	0.2%	
-									1 1								
D.	Special purpose						0.00		l ľ	E. Special purpose							
D.1	Capital investments	23.0	0.4%	-	57.0	80.0	0.3%	-	l ľ	E.1 Capital investments	23.0	0.4%	-	57.0	80.0	0.3%	
0.2	Private fundraiking and partnerships, direct/Investment	70.5		222.0			4.704			E.2 Private fundraising and partnerships, direct/investment	200		272.0				
	costs	725.1	11.3%	273.0		998.3	4.2%		Ш	costs	725.1	113%	273.0	-	9983	4.2%	
D.3	Other	240.0	3.7%			240.0	1.0%		l ľ	E.3 Other	240.0	3.7%		-	240.0	1.0%	
Subtotal:	Special purpose	988.1	15.4%	273.0	57.0	1,318.4	5.5%	-	ł	Subtotal: Special purpose	988.1	15.4%	273.0	57.0	1,318.4	5.5%	
Institution	al budget (A2+8+C+D.1)	1,095.2	17.1%	165.3	1,195.0	2,455.5	10.2%			institutional budget (A.2+B+C+D+E.1)	1,095.2	17.1%	165.3	1,195.0	2,455.5	10.2%	
Integrated	budget (AIBICID)	6,420.3	100.0%	16,355.6	1,195.0	23,971.0	100.0%	7,116.0		integrated budget (A+B+C+D+E)	6,420.3	100.0%	16,355.6	1,195.0	23,971.0	100.0%	7,116.0
3. Closine	balance of resources	363.8		197.8		561.6		759.0		3. Cosing balance of resources	363.8		197.8		561.5		759.0

UNFPA

UNFPA	Integ	grated budget, 20	18-2021 - DP/F	PA/2018/8/0	Integrated budget, 2018-2021 (restated)					
	Regular	Other reso	ources	Total	Percentage of	Regular	Other reso	ources	Total	Percentage of
1. Resources available	resources	Programme	Cost	resources	total	resources	Programme	Cost	resources	total
			recovery					recovery		
Opening balance ^{a/}	48.5	458.8		507.3		48.5	458.8	-	507.3	
Income										
Contribution-gross	1,400.0	2,100.0	-	3,500.0		1,400.0	2,100.0	-	3,500.0	
Other ^{b/}	19.9	-	-	19.9		19.9	-	-	19.9	
Total income	1,419.9	2,100.0	-	3,519.9		1,419.9	2,100.0	-	3,519.9	
Less tax reimbursement c/	(23.8)	-	-	(23.8)		(23.8)	-	-	(23.8)	
Total available	1,444.6	2,558.8		4,003.4		1,444.6	2,558.8	-	4,003.4	
2. Use of resources										
A. Development activities						-	-	-		
A.1 Programme ^{d/}	716.5	2,325.1	(155.6)	2,886.0	76.6%	716.5	2,325.1	(155.6)	2,886.0	76.6%
A.2 Global and regional interventions	152.5			152.5	4.0%	152.5	-		152.5	4.0%
A.3 Emergency fund	22.5			22.5	0.6%	22.5	-	-	22.5	0.6%
A.4 Development effectiveness	139.4			139.4	3.7%	140.3	-	-	140.3	3.7%
Total development	1,030.8	2,325.1	(155.6)	3,200.3	84.9%	1,031.7	2,325.1	(155.6)	3,201.2	84.9%
B. United Nations development coordination	16.6			16.6	0.4%	16.6	-	-	16.6	0.4%
C. Management activities										
C.1 Recurring costs	372.6	0.0	152.5	525.1	13.9%	338.9	-	141.7	480.6	12.8%
C.2 Non-recurring costs	4.1		3.1	7.2	0.2%	-	0.0		0.0	0.0%
Total management	376.7	-	155.6	532.3	14.1%	338.9	-	141.7	480.6	12.8%
D. Independent oversight and assurance activities										
D1. Corporate evaluation						9.0	-	3.8	12.7	
D2. Audit and investigation						24.3	-	10.2	34.5	
Total independent oversight and assurance			*****			33.3		13.9	47.2	1.3%
E. Special purpose										
E.1 Premises capital plan and MOSS	-	-	-	-	0.0%	3.6	-	-	3.6	0.1%
E.2 ICT transformation	20.0			20.0	0.5%	20.0	-	-	20.0	0.5%
Total special purpose	20.0	-	-	20.0	0.5%	23.6	-	-	23.6	0.6%
Total use of resources (A+B+C+D+E)	1,444.1	2,325.1	-	3,769.2	100.0%	1,444.1	2,325.1	-	3,769.2	100.0%
3. Net amounts from/(to) reserves ^{e/}	0.5	-	-	0.5		0.5	-	-	0.5	
4. Balance of resources (1-2+3)	1.1	233.7	-	234.7		1.1	233.7	-	234.7	
Total institutional budget (A.4+B+C+D+E)	552.6	-	155.6	708.2	18.8%	552.6	-	155.6	708.2	18.8%

UN-Women

Mock up of Recommendations 1, 3 and partial 2

(the integrated Rudget has been doubled for comparability purposes

		2018-2019 Estimates						2018-2019	Estimates		
		Other Resources						Other Res	iources.		
	Regular	Cost				Regular			Cont		
	resources %	Programme Recovery	Total	%		resources	- %	Programme	Recovery	Total	%
L.Resources evallable	1	154 65	1000		1.Resources available	1		199	300		
Opening Balance	115.0 12.5%	379.6 56.8	551.4	23.8%	Opening Balance	115.0	12.5%	379.6	35.8	551.4	23.89
ncome	0.0000 0000	140,000,00			Income			131136			
Contributions.	800.0 86.9%	897.2 62.8	1760.0	75.9%	Contributions	800.0	86.0%	897.2	62.8	1760.0	75,91
Other income and reimburements	6.0 0.7%	THOUGH ADSVAL	6.0	0.3%	Other income and reimburements	5.0	0.7%	JARON	20000	6.0	0.3N
Total available	921.0 100.0%	1276.8 119.6	2,317.4	100.0%	Total available	921.0	100.0%	1276.8	119.5	2,317.4	100.0
2.Use of resources				37777	2.Use of resources		2511	Henry.	112-1		- 117
A Development activities	1				A Development activities						
A.I Programme	465.2	1,027.0	1,492.2		A.1 Programme	465.2		1027.0		1,492.2	
A.2 Development effectiveness	87.5	12.6	100.1		A.2 Development effectiveness	91.3		318/05/0	12.6	103.9	
Subtotal Development Activities	552.7 68.4%	1,027.0 12.6	1,592.3	83.9%	Subtotal Development Activities	556.5	68.9%	1027.0	12.6	1,596.1	84.1%
B United Nations development coordination	54.4 6.7%		54.4	2.9%	B United Nations development coordination	54.4	5.7%			54.4	2.9%
C Management activities					C Management activities	162.0		ř.	50.2	212.2	11.2%
C.1 Recurring	167.4	50.2	217.6		Name and Address of the Address of t			-			
C.2 Non-recurring											
C.3 Evaluation	13.4		13.4								
C.4 Audit and Investigation	17.0		12.0								
Subtotal Management Activities	292.8 23.9%	50.2	243.0	12.8%							
Section 1997 Section 1997	11 3307 10		P-GH	10.00	D. Independent Oversight and Assurance Activities						
					D.1 Evaluation	13.4				33.4	
					D. 2 Audit and investigations	12.0				12.0	
					Subtotal Independent Oversight and Assurance	25.4				25.4	1.7%
D Special-purpose activities	1				E Special-purpose activities				-		
D.3 Resource Misolization	2.0		2.0		E.1 Resource Mobilization	2.0				2.0	
D.2 ICT Transportation	4.0		4.0		E.2 ICT Transportation	4.0				4.0	
scarci maniponación	100		0		E.3 Capital Investments MOSS	1.6				1.6	
Subtotal Special Purpose Activities	6.0 0.7%		6.0	0.3%	Subtotal Special Purpose Activities	7.6	0.9%			7.6	0.4%
Sustotal Special Purpose Activities	\$0 0.79	-	6.0	9.8%	Subtotal special Purpole Activities	1.02	9379			1.16	VAN.
E Posts to be transferred to UN regular budget	2.0 0.2%		2.0	9.1%	E Posts to be transferred to UN regular budget	2.0	0.2%			2.0	0.1%
Total Institutional Budget	342.7 42.4%	62.8	405.5	71,4%	Total Institutional Budget	342.7	42,4%		52.8	405.5	21.4%
Total use of nisources	807.9 100.0N	1027.0 62.8	1897.7	100.0%	Total use of resources	807.9	100.0%	1,027.6	62.8	1,897.7	100.01
Balance of resources	113.1	249.8 56.8	419.7		Bulance of resources		0.0	249.8	56.8	419.7	
						113.1					

Note: Recommendation 2 is linked to the outcome of the change management exercise that is reviewing HIQ, RO and Cos functions thus the implications of these are not presented in this sample mock up.

D. Cost recovery: basis and principles

(paras. 3-9 from DP/FPA-ICEF-UNW/2018/1)

Cost recovery refers to the requirement of the organization to ensure that regular resources are not used to subsidize the implementation of programmes funded from other resources. It is essential that the organization recover all its costs if it is to remain sustainable. The cost-recovery methodology recognizes that certain functions which are integral to the existence and advancement of an organization's mandate must be carried out regardless of the volume of programme implementation. Therefore, funding for these functions must be assured from regular resources.

The overarching principles which the agencies have observed in defining the cost-recovery approaches discussed in this paper include: (a) continuing a harmonized approach across all four entities; (b) maximizing the allocation of regular resources to programmatic activities; (c) minimizing cross-subsidization between regular and other resources; and (d) continuing to be efficient and competitive within the overall development cooperation context.

A harmonized approach to cost recovery can include harmonization of the cost-recovery methodology, the cost classifications and the cost-recovery rate. The current cost-recovery policy encompasses all three. In the alternative proposal, a harmonized approach is used with respect to methodology and cost classifications, but without a derived harmonized rate.

Full cost recovery includes both direct and indirect costs. Costs are categorized as direct, i.e., directly linked and traceable to a programme or project and to benefits derived by programme/project beneficiaries, or as indirect, i.e., not directly linked or traceable to a programme/project. Direct costs are recovered from regular or other resources depending on the funding source of the programme/project. Examples of direct costs relating to programmes/projects include:

- (a) Costs of missions and travel incurred specifically to carry out or support project activities;
- (b) Cost of staff and consultants hired for the project;
- (c) Cost of policy advisory services (fully costed: staff cost, share of office rent, utilities, communications, supplies and office security);
- (d) Cost of processing transactional services (finance, administration, procurement, human resources, logistics);
- (e) Equipment, including information technology equipment, maintenance, licenses and support for the programme/project;
- (f) Programme/project audit and evaluation fees.

Indirect costs are associated with the organizational structure and services necessary to support implementation of development programmes and projects, i.e., the costs of running the organization. Indirect costs are allocated to programmes/projects and are recovered through application of indirect cost-recovery rates as a percentage fee on direct costs. Indirect costs are included in the organizations' institutional budgets; thus, the indirect cost-recovery model is designed to recover the designated costs of the institutional budget. Examples of indirect costs which support an organization's activities include:

- (a) Corporate executive management;
- (b) Corporate resource mobilization;
- (c) Country office, regional or corporate management;
- (d) Corporate accounting and financial management staff;
- (e) Internal audit function at headquarters and unit level;
- (f) Institutional legal support;
- (g) Corporate human resources management.

General Assembly resolution 71/243 of 21 December 2016 on the quadrennial comprehensive policy review of operational activities for development of the United Nations system emphasized two critical concepts that guide any cost-recovery policy and form the basis for both the current and alternate proposals. These concepts are: (a) regular resources form a bedrock of United Nations operational activities for development owing to their untied nature; and (b) regular resources should not subsidize other resources.

The role of regular resources includes support to Member States in the establishment and implementation of United Nations norms and/or standards to implement strategic plans. This contrasts with the mandate of a project implementation agency.

E. Detailed calculations of the notional cost-recovery rates

	Use of resources	UNDP 2018-2021 IB	UNICEF 2018-2021 IB	UNFPA 2018-2021 IB	UN Women 2018-2019 IB
A1	Regular resources (RR)	2,749.8	6,420.3	1,444.1	800.0
A2	Other resources (OR)	21,140.7	17,550.6	2,325.1	960.0
	Total	23,890.5	23,970.9	3,769.2	1,760.0
	the proportionate percentage share of RR ne planned use of resources				
B1	Proportionate share of RR	12%	27%	38%	45%
B2	Proportionate share of OR	88%	73%	62%	55%
special purp	the sum of management and comparable lose costs (and remove costs related to s-cutting functions)				
С	Institutional Budget	2,443.1	2,455.5	708.2	408.8
	Less				
C1	Development effectiveness activities	(507.0)	(721.9)	(140.3)	(107.8)
C2	Non-comparable special purpose activities	(275.7)		(23.6)	(7.6)
C3	UN development coordination activities	(86.0)	(49.3)	(16.6)	(54.4)
C4	Critical cross-cutting management functions Critical cross-cutting oversight and	(171.8)	(198.6)	(167.9)	(65.8)
C5	assurance functions	(7.2)	(4.0)	(8.1)	(25.5)
	Total – institutional budget (IB) subject to cost recovery	1,395.4	1,481.7	351.7	147.8
proportiona core and no D=C-	amount calculated in step2 and split it illy, according to the levels of total planned n-core use of resources IB subject to cost recovery, based on				
(C1:C4)	approved methodology	1,395.4	1,481.7	351.7	147.8
E1=B1*D	RR proportional share of IB	160.6	396.9	134.8	67.2
E2=B2*D	OR proportional share of IB	1,234.8	1,084.8	217.0	80.6
F=E2/(A2- E2)	Notional rate	6.2%	6.6%	10.3%	9.2%

F. Glossary

Cost classification categories

The cost-classification categories and definitions approved in UNDP/UNFPA/UNOPS Executive Board decision 2010/32 and UNICEF Executive Board decision 2010/20 (reviewed in UNDP/UNFPA/UNOPS Executive Board decision 2019/21 and UNICEF Executive Board decision 2019/28); and UN-Women Executive Board decision 2019/12, are:

- (a) **Development activities.** These comprise costs associated with programmes and development effectiveness activities which contribute to and are essential for the realization of effective development results, as follows:
- (b) **Programmes**. Activities and associated costs traced to specific programme components or projects, which contribute to delivery of development results contained in country/regional/global programme documents or other programming arrangements.
- (c) **Development effectiveness activities.** The costs of activities of a policy-advisory, technical and implementation nature that are needed to achieve the objectives of programmes and projects in the focus areas of the organizations. These inputs are essential to the delivery of development results and are not included in specific programme components or projects in country, regional, or global programme documents.
- (d) *United Nations development coordination activities*. This comprises activities and associated costs supporting the coordination of development activities of the United Nations system.
- (e) *Management activities*. This comprises activities and associated costs whose primary function is the promotion of the identity, direction and well-being of an organization. These include executive direction, representation, external relations and partnerships, corporate communications, legal, information technology, finance, administration, security and human resources. Management costs are classified as recurrent or non-recurrent.
- (f) *Independent oversight and assurance activities*. This comprises activities and associated costs supporting the independent audit and investigations and corporate evaluation functions.
- (g) **Special-purpose activities**. This covers activities and associated costs of: (a) capital investments; and (b) services for other United Nations organizations.

Critical cross-cutting management functions

(as defined in DP/FPA/2013/1 – E/ICEF/2013/8, paragraphs 15 and 16)

"The concept of critical cross-cutting functions is akin to the concepts of 'fixed indirect costs' and 'base structure' used in previous models of cost recovery. Specifically, a level of core resources would be available to ensure a provision of resources to support the mandate, integrity and resource mobilization platform. In other words, the cost recovery methodology takes into account that certain functions that are integral to the existence and the advancement of the mandate of the organizations must be carried out, irrespective of the volume of programme implementation and therefore, their funding must be assured from the regular resources.

The main difference between cross-cutting critical functions in the present model, as opposed to fixed indirect costs or base structure in previous ones, is in their scope, as the notion of critical cross cutting functions is much more limited than similar notions in previous models. In addition, while the previous model included in its fixed indirect cost a portion of costs now classified as development effectiveness, the newly proposed model excludes development effectiveness from the calculation of the cost recovery rate."

Effective indirect cost recovery rate. The actual cost-recovery rate realized after taking into account the effect of differentiated rates, pre-existing preferential rates and waivers granted each year.

Notional indirect cost-recovery rate. The rate as calculated by application of a specific methodology. **Standard indirect cost-recovery rate.** The rate approved by the Executive Board as the percentage fee to be applied to direct costs, based on the funding source.